In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006.

MR01 Particulars of a charge



| | Www.gov.uk/companieshouse A fee is be payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the last pa | ge. 170451673 |
|----------------------|---|---|
| 1 | What this form is for You may use this form to register a charge created or evidenced by an instrument. What this form is NOT for You may not use this form to register a charge where there is instrument. Use form MR08. | For further information, please refer to our guidance at: |
| | court order exterioring the time for delivery. | *\$7ZD6U3U* SCT 15/02/2019 #50 COMPANIES HOUSE |
| | You must enclose a certified copy of the instrument with this form. This was scanned and placed on the public record. Do not send the original . | NAMES HOUSE |
| 1 | Company details | 3 For official use |
| Company number | S C 4 8 5 1 0 3 | → Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in |
| Company name in full | Ferguson Marine Engineering (Holdings) Limited | bold black capitals. |
| | | All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by * |
| 2 | Charge creation date | |
| Charge creation date | d 0 d 1 0 2 y 2 y 0 y 1 y 9 | |
| 3 | Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the | charge |
| | Please show the names of each of the persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge. | |
| Name | Clyde Blowers Capital Fund III LP | - |
| Name | | COMPANIES HOUSE EDINBURGH |
| Name | | 1 5 FEB 2019 |
| Name | | FRONT DESK |
| | If there are more than four names, please supply any four of these names then tick the statement below. | |
| | I confirm that there are more than four persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge. | |
| | | |
| | | |

| | MR01 Particulars of a charge | | |
|-------------------|---|--|--|
| 4 | Brief description | | |
| | Please give a short description of any land, ship, aircraft or intellectual property registered or required to be registered in the UK subject to a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security included in the instrument. | Please submit only a short description If there are a number of plots of land, aircraft and/or ships, you should simply describe some | |
| Brief description | | of them in the text field and add a statement along the lines of, "for more details please refer to the instrument". | |
| | | Please limit the description to the available space. | |
| 5 | Other charge or fixed security | | |
| | Does the instrument include a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security over any tangible or intangible or (in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box. | | |
| | ☐ Yes ☑ No | | |
| 6 | Floating charge | | |
| | Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box. | | |
| | ✓ Yes Continue | | |
| | No Go to Section 7 | | |
| | Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company? | | |
| | ☑ Yes | | |
| 7 | Negative Pledge | | |
| | Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the company from creating further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box. | | |
| | ✓ Yes | | |
| | □ No | | |
| 8 | Trustee statement • | | |
| | You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge. | This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06). | |
| 9 | Signature | | |
| | Please sign the form here. | | |
| iignature | Signature XM. MacInnes On behalf & Brodies UP. | | |
| | On behalf & Brodies UP. | | |
| | This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge. | | |

MR01

Particulars of a charge

Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do, it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

| Contact name | FER274.47/PBR/RET |
|---------------|--------------------|
| ļ | |
| Сотрапу пате | BRODIES LLP |
| | |
| Address | 15 Atholl Crescent |
| | |
| | |
| Post town | Edinburgh |
| County/Region | |
| Postcode | E H 3 8 H A |
| Country | |
| DX | |
| Telephone | 0131 656 3724 |

Certificate

We will send your certificate to the presenter's address if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank.

✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- ☐ You have included a certified copy of the instrument with this form.
- You have entered the date on which the charge was created.
- You have shown the names of persons entitled to the charge.
- ☐ You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8.
- You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate.
- ☐ You have signed the form.
- You have enclosed the correct fee.
- Please do not send the original instrument; it must be a certified copy.

Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record.

How to pay

A fee of £23 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed on paper.

Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address. However, for expediency, we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

For companies registered in England and Wales: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

For companies registered in Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

For companies registered in Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 485103

Charge code: SC48 5103 0003

The Registrar of Companies for Scotland hereby certifies that a charge dated 1st February 2019 and created by FERGUSON MARINE ENGINEERING (HOLDINGS) LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 15th February 2019.

Given at Companies House, Edinburgh on 18th February 2019





BOND AND FLOATING CHARGE

by

FERGUSON MARINE ENGINEERING (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

in favour of

CLYDE BLOWERS CAPITAL FUND III LP

This bond and floating charge is subject to an intercreditor deed between, amongst others, HCC International Insurance Company pic and the Scottish Ministers

CERTIFIED A TRUE
COPY SAVE FOR THE
MATERIAL REDACTED
PURSUANT TO \$859G
OF THE COMPANIES

BRODIES LLP Solicitors

14 FEB 2019

Ref: *FERZI4 : 47*

BRODIES"

15 Atholi Crescent Edinburgh EH3 8HA T: 0131 228 3777 F: 0131 228 3878

Ref: FER274.47

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| 1 | Definitions and Interpretation1 |
|----|--------------------------------------|
| 2 | Undertaking to Pay4 |
| 3 | Floating Charge5 |
| 4 | Provisions as to Security6 |
| 5 | Restriction on Dealings8 |
| 6 | When security becomes enforceable8 |
| 7 | Receivers and Administrators8 |
| 8 | Provisions applicable on enforcement |
| 9 | Release of security |
| 10 | Avoidance of payments12 |
| 11 | Cumulative remedies and waivers12 |
| 12 | Severability |
| 13 | Application of proceeds |
| 14 | New Accounts |
| 15 | Suspense Accounts |
| 16 | Power of Attorney |
| 17 | Transfers14 |
| 18 | Notices14 |
| 19 | Financial Collateral14 |
| 20 | Registration |
| 21 | Counterparts, Delivery, Etc |
| 22 | Governing Law and Jurisdiction |

For the purposes of the Legal Writings (Counterparts and Delivery) (Scotland) Act 2015, this BOND AND FLOATING CHARGE is delivered on 2019

by

(1) FERGUSON MARINE ENGINEERING (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, incorporated in Scotland under the Companies Acts (Company Number SC485103) and having its registered office at Orbital House, 3 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, G74 5PA (the "Chargor");

in favour of

CLYDE BLOWERS CAPITAL FUND III LP a limited partnership registered in Scotland (registered number SL008995) and having its registered office at Redwood House 5 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, G74 5PA acting by its general partner, Clyde Blowers Capital GP III L.P., a limited partnership registered in Scotland (registered number SL008841), whose registered office is at Redwood House 5 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, G74 5PA, acting by its general partner Clyde Blowers Capital GP III Limited (registered number SC392285), whose registered office is at Redwood House 5 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, South Lanarkshire, Scotland, G74 5PA ("CBC").

BACKGROUND

- (A) CBC will provide certain credit facilities to the Chargor pursuant to the Loan Agreement (each term as defined below).
- (B) One of the conditions precedent to the provision of facilities to the Chargor is that the Chargor grants to CBC this Floating Charge.

Now this floating charge witnesses as follows:

- 1 Definitions and Interpretation
- 1.1 Incorporation of definitions

Terms defined in the Intercreditor Deed, unless otherwise defined in this Floating Charge or unless a contrary Intention appears, bear the same meaning when used in this Floating Charge.

1,2 Additional definitions

In this Floating Charge:

"Administrator" means any person appointed as an administrator pursuant to paragraph

14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act;

"Charged Assets" means the whole of the property, assets and undertaking (including

| uncalled capital) f | from time to | time of the | Chargor |
|---------------------|--------------|-------------|---------|
|---------------------|--------------|-------------|---------|

| | uncalled capital) from time to time of the Chargor; |
|------------------------|---|
| "Enforcement Event" | means an Event of Default has occurred in terms of the Loan Agreement; |
| "Event of Default" | means an Event of Default in terms of and as defined in the Loan Agreement; |
| "Finance Document" | means a Finance Document under and in terms of the Loan Agreement; |
| "Fixed Security" | shall have the meaning given to it in section 486 of the Companies Act 1985; |
| "Floating Charge" | means this bond and floating charge; |
| "FMEL" | means Ferguson Marine Engineering Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland with Company No. SC485060 and whose registered office is at Orbital House, 3 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, G74 5PA; |
| "HCCI" | means HCC International Insurance Company Pic, a company registered under the laws of England (registered number 01575839) and whose registered office is at 1 Aldgate, London, England, EC3N 1RE; |
| "Holdings" | means Ferguson Marine Engineering (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland (Company No. SC485103) and whose registered office is at Orbital House, 3 Redwood Crescent, Peel Park, East Kilbride, G74 5PA; |
| "Insolvency Act" | means the insolvency Act 1986; |
| "Intercreditor Deed" | means the intercreditor deed entered into or to be entered into between HCCI, the Scottish Ministers, CBC and the Obligors on or around the date hereof; |
| "Loan Agreement" | means the loan agreement entered into between CBC as lender and the Chargor as borrower on or around the date hereof; |
| "MacKellar" | means MacKellar Sub-Sea Limited a company incorporated in Scotland with Company No. SC486910 and whose registered office is at Orbital House 3 Redwood Crescent Peel Park, East Kilbride, South Lanarkshire, Scotland, G74 5PA; |
| "Obligor" | means the Chargor, FMEL, and MacKellar; |

includes any person or persons appointed (and any additional person or persons appointed or substituted) as receiver by CBC under this Floating

"Receiver"

Charge and shall include joint Receivers;

"Secured Obligations"

means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent, whether owed jointly or severally, as principal or surety or in any other capacity whatsoever) of each Obligor to CBC under the Finance Documents, except for any obligation or liability which, if it were so included, would result in this Floating Charge contravening any law;

"Security"

means a mortgage, charge, assignment in security, assignation in security, floating charge, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect; and

"Security
Documents"

means the CBC Security Documents, SG Security Documents, the HCCl Security Documents and the 2014 Security.

1.3 Construction

- 1.3.1 Unless a contrary indication appears, any reference in this Floating Charge to:
 - 1.3.1.1 any "Chargor", "CBC" or any other person shall be construed so as to include its successors in title, permitted assignees and permitted transferees;
 - 1.3.1.2 "assets" includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description;
 - 1.3.1.3 any "Loan Agreement" or "Finance Document" any other agreement or instrument is a reference to that Loan Agreement and/ or Finance Document or other agreement or instrument as from time to time amended, novated, supplemented, replaced, extended or restated in whole or in part;
 - 1.3.1.4 a "person" includes any person, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality) or two or more of the foregoing;
 - 1.3.1.5 a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, department or regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
 - 1.3.1.6 a provision of law is a reference to that provision as from time to time amended or re-enacted;

- 1.3.1.7 "disposal" includes a sale, transfer, grant, lease or other disposal, whether voluntary or involuntary (and "dispose" shall be construed accordingly);
- 1.3.1.8 "document" includes any deed, instrument (including negotiable instrument) or other document of any kind;
- 1.3.1.9 any matter "including" specific instances or examples of such matter shall be construed without limitation to the generality of that matter (and references to "include" shall be construed accordingly);
- 1.3.1.10 the "winding-up", "dissolution" or "administration" of a person shall be construed so as to include any equivalent or analogous proceedings under the law of the jurisdiction in which such person is incorporated or established, or any jurisdiction in which such person carries on business including the seeking of liquidation, winding-up, reorganisation, dissolution, administration, arrangement, adjustment, protection or relief of debtors; and
- 1.3.1.11 Clauses are to the clauses to this Floating Charge.
- 1.3.2 Clause headings are for ease of reference only.
- 1.3.3 Words in the singular shall import the plural and vice versa.
- 1.3.4 Words defined in the Companies Act 2006 have the same meanings in this Floating Charge.
- 1.3.5 This Floating Charge is subject to the terms of the intercreditor Deed.

2 Undertaking to Pay

2.1 Covenant to pay

The Chargor undertakes to CBC to pay, discharge and satisfy the Secured Obligations when the same become due in terms of the Finance Documents whether by acceleration or otherwise.

2.2 Interest

The Chargor shall pay interest on any amount demanded from it in accordance with this Floating Charge from the date of such demand until such amount is irrevocably discharged and paid in full (such interest to accrue on a daily basis after as well as before judgment or the liquidation or administration of the Chargor and to be payable on demand) at the rate from time to time applicable to unpaid sums specified in the Finance Documents, save to the extent that such interest is charged on such amount pursuant to the relevant Finance Document and itself constitutes a Secured Obligation.

3 Floating Charge

3.1 General

All the security created under this Floating Charge:

- 3.1.1 is created over present and future assets of the Chargor;
- 3.1.2 is security for the payment of all the Secured Obligations; and
- 3.1.3 is granted with absolute warrandice.

3.2 Floating charge

The Chargor grants a floating charge in favour of CBC over the Charged Assets.

3.3 Priority

- 3.3.1 The floating charge created by Clause 3.2 (Floating charge) shall, subject to section 464(2) of the Companies Act 1985, rank in priority to any Fixed Security (other than any Fixed Security granted by the Chargor in favour of CBC which shall rank in priority to the floating charge created by Clause 3.2 (Floating charge)) and to any other floating charge.
- 3.3.2 The Chargor shall not, without the prior written consent of CBC or as may be permitted in terms of the Loan Agreement, create or permit to exist any Fixed Security or floating charge over all or any part of the Charged Assets which ranks in priority to or equally with the floating charge created by Clause 3.2 (Floating charge) except for any Fixed Security granted by the Chargor in favour of CBC.

3.4 Qualifying Floating Charge

Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act applies to the floating charge created by Clause 3.2 (*Floating charge*) so that the floating charge created by Clause 3.2 (*Floating charge*) shall be a "qualifying floating charge" for the purposes of that paragraph.

3.5 Restrictions on the creation of security

If security cannot be created in respect of any asset of the Chargor without the consent of any third party:

- 3.5.1 the Chargor must notify CBC promptly upon becoming aware of the same;
- 3.5.2 this Floating Charge shall not create any security in respect of that asset except to the extent permitted without the consent of any third party but will secure all amounts which the Chargor may receive in respect of that asset;

- 3.5.3 unless CBC otherwise agrees, the Chargor must use reasonable endeavours to obtain the consent of the third party to the creation of security over that asset pursuant to this Floating Charge; and
- 3.5.4 on and from the date on which such consent is obtained, the security created by this Floating Charge shall extend to and include that asset.

4 Provisions as to Security

4.1 Continuing security

- 4.1.1 The security from time to time created by this Floating Charge is a continuing security and will remain in full force and effect as a continuing security until released or discharged by CBC.
- 4.1.2 No part of the security from time to time created by this Floating Charge will be considered satisfied or discharged by any intermediate payment, discharge or satisfaction of the whole or any part of the Secured Obligations.

4.2 Additional security

This Floating Charge shall be without prejudice and in addition to any other security which may at any time be held by CBC from the Chargor or any other person in respect of the whole or any part of the Secured Obligations and may be enforced independently of any such other security.

4.3 No obligation to take other enforcement proceedings

CBC shall not be obliged before exercising any of the rights conferred on it by this Floating Charge or by law:

- 4.3.1 to make any demand of the Chargor or any other person other than that required by the terms of the Loan Agreement;
- 4.3.2 to take any action, enforce any security, exercise any right of compensation or set- off or to obtain or enforce any judgement, decree or order in any court against the Chargor or any other person;
- 4.3.3 to make or file any claim or proof in a winding up, liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceedings of the Chargor or any other person; or
- 4.3.4 to enforce or seek to enforce any other security taken in respect of any of the obligations of the Chargor or any other person under the Finance Documents.

4.4 Waiver of defences

The obligations of the Chargor under this Floating Charge will not be affected by any act, omission or circumstances which, but for this Clause 4.4 (Waiver of defences), might operate to release, discharge, impair or otherwise affect any of the obligations of the Chargor under this Floating Charge or any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon CBC by the Finance Documents or by law including (but without limitation) and whether or not known to the Chargor or CBC:

- 4.4.1 any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, the Chargor or other person;
- 4.4.2 the release of the Chargor or any other person from its obligations under any Finance Document or any security or guarantee granted in connection therewith, other than an express release in writing of this Floating Charge;
- 4.4.3 the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, the Chargor or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security, other than an express release in writing of this Floating Charge;
- 4.4.4 any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of the Chargor or any other person;
- 4.4.5 any amendment, novation, supplement, extension, restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of any Finance Document or any other document or security including without limitation any change in the purpose of, any extension of or any increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Finance Document or other document or security;
- 4.4.6 any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
- 4.4.7 any insolvency or similar proceedings.

4.5 Non-competition

Until the security created by this Floating Charge has been discharged, the Chargor will not, after a claim has been made or by virtue of any payment or performance by it of the Secured Obligations:

- 4.5.1 be subrogated to any rights, security or monies held, received or receivable by CBC or the Chargor nor be entitled to any right of contribution or indemnity in respect of any payment made or monies received on account of the Secured Obligations;
- 4.5.2 claim, rank, prove or vote as a creditor of the Chargor; or

- 4.5.3 receive, claim or have the benefit of any payment, distribution or security from or on account of the Chargor, or exercise any right of set-off as against the Chargor,
- 4.5.4 and the Chargor shall forthwith pay or transfer to CBC an amount equal to the amount of any dividend, distribution, contribution or benefit (including without limitation any amount set-off) actually received by it and in the meantime shall hold the same in trust for CBC to the extent required to pay or discharge the Secured Obligations.

4.6 Further assurance

The Chargor will promptly do all such acts or execute all such documents as CBC may reasonably specify (and in such form as CBC may reasonably require) to:

- 4.6.1 perfect the security created or intended to be created by this Floating Charge or for the exercise of the rights, powers and remedies of CBC or any Receiver provided by or pursuant to this Floating Charge or by law;
- 4.6.2 confer on CBC security over any property or assets of the Chargor located in any jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom equivalent or similar to the security intended to be conferred by or pursuant to this Floating Charge;
- 4.6.3 to confer on CBC any further security over all or any part of its property, assets and undertaking as CBC may require; and/or
- 4.6.4 after the security created by this Floating Charge has become enforceable pursuant to Clause 6 (When security becomes enforceable) facilitate the realisation of the Charged Assets.

5 Restriction on Dealings

Save for the Security Documents, the Chargor will not create or permit to subsist any Security on any part of the Charged Assets or dispose of or otherwise deal with any part of the Charged Assets.

6 When security becomes enforceable

The security created by this Floating Charge will become immediately enforceable upon the occurrence of an Enforcement Event which is continuing.

7 Receivers and Administrators

7.1 Appointment and Removal

Without prejudice to the provisions of the Insolvency Act, at any time after having been requested to do so by the Chargor or at any time after the security created by this Floating Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 6 (When security becomes enforceable), CBC

may by instrument in writing (under seal, by deed or otherwise under hand), without prior notice to any Chargor:

- 7.1.1 (subject to section 72A of the Insolvency Act) appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver of the whole or any part of the Charged Assets;
- 7.1.2 remove (so far as it is lawfully able) any Receiver so appointed;
- 7.1.3 appoint another person(s) as an additional or replacement Receiver(s); and
- 7.1.4 appoint one or more persons to be an Administrator in accordance with paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986.

7.2 Receiver as agent of the Chargor

A Receiver shall be the agent of the Chargor and, except as otherwise required by the Insolvency Act, the Chargor shall be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and liable on any contract or engagements made or entered into or adopted by him.

7.3 Powers of Receiver

A Receiver shall have (and be entitled to exercise in such manner and on such terms as he may in his absolute discretion think fit) in relation to the Charged Assets over which he is appointed the following powers (as the same may be varied or extended by the provisions of this Floating Charge):

- 7.3.1 all of the powers of a receiver set out in Schedule 2 to the Insolvency Act;
- 7.3.2 power to sell (whether by public auction or private contract or otherwise) all or any of the Charged Assets on any terms and for any consideration (including without limitation for deferred consideration or a consideration payable wholly or partly in instalments or consisting in whole or in part of shares or securities of any other company or of any other non-cash asset);
- 7.3.3 power to grant any lease or tenancy or right of or affecting the Charged Assets for any term or terms of years at any or no rent and with or without any premium and accept the surrender of any lease or tenancy or right and give a valid receipt for any premium payable on any such grant or surrender and to amend or vary any lease, licence agreement or other arrangement in any way relating to or affecting the Charged Assets;
- 7.3.4 power to grant options to sell, lease, licence or dispose of the Charged Assets;
- 7.3.5 power to enter on or otherwise take possession of the Charged Assets to repair, convert, manufacture, process, decorate, alter, renew, improve, add to or develop or to complete any development or building which may be unfinished and to settle,

- compound, compromise or submit to arbitration any accounts or claims arising out of the commencement, carrying on or completion of any such development or building;
- 7.3.6 power to redeem any mortgage, charge or other encumbrance on, over or affecting the Charged Assets or any part of it;
- 7.3.7 power to repair, renew or improve plant, machinery, implements, furniture, equipment and other effects of the Chargor in or on the Charged Assets;
- 7.3.8 power to settle or compromise or submit to arbitration any claim or claims on or against the Charged Assets or claim or dispute arising out of the Charged Assets;
- 7.3.9 power to disclaim, abandon or disregard all or any of the outstanding contracts of the Chargor and to allow time for payment by or to the Chargor of any debts either with or without security;
- 7.3.10 power to manage and carry on or concur in managing or carrying on upon the Charged Assets any type of trade or business and to enter and perform such contracts and arrangements and incur any obligations in relation thereto;
- 7.3.11 power to make or exercise an election pursuant to paragraphs 2 and 3 of Schedule 10 to the Value Added Tax Act 1994 in relation to the Charged Assets or exercise any option or right of election available to the Chargor or CBC or the Receiver that the supplies made in respect of any lease or tenancy of any part of the Charged Assets shall be supplies chargeable or taxable for value added tax purposes at the standard or other applicable rate provided always that neither CBC nor the Receiver shall be liable for any loss suffered by the Chargor as a result and to execute all documents, and perform such acts or things as a result and to execute all documents, and perform such acts or things as maybe necessary to permit any disposal of the Charged Assets to be zero-rated for the purposes of value added tax;
- 7.3.12 power to exercise all voting and other rights attaching to stocks, shares and other securities comprising or comprised within the Charged Assets;
- 7.3.13 power to exercise in relation to any Charged Asset all the powers, authorities and things which he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of that Charged Asset; and
- 7.3.14 power to do all things which, in the opinion of the Receiver, are incidental to any of the powers, functions, authorities or discretions conferred or vested in the Receiver pursuant to this Floating Charge or upon receivers by statute or law generally (including the bringing or defending of proceedings in the name of, or on behalf of, the Chargor; the preservation, improvement, collection and/or realisation of Charged Assets; and the execution of documents in the name of the Chargor (whether under hand, or by way of deed or by utilisation of the company seal of the Chargor).

7.4 Discretions

Any liberty or power which may be exercised or any determination which may be made under this Floating Charge by CBC or any Receiver may be exercised or made in its absolute and unfettered discretion without any obligation to give reasons.

7.5 Powers may be restricted

The powers granted to a Receiver pursuant to this Floating Charge may be restricted by the instrument (signed by CBC) appointing him but they shall not be restricted by any winding-up or dissolution of the Chargor.

8 Provisions applicable on enforcement

8.1 Protection of third parties

- 8.1.1 No purchaser from, or other person dealing with, a Receiver shall be concerned to enquire whether any of the powers exercised or purported to be exercised has arisen or become exercisable, whether any of the Secured Obligations remains outstanding, whether a Receiver is authorised to act or as to the propriety or validity of the exercise or purported exercise of any power and a certificate in writing by an officer or agent of CBC that the power of sale or other disposal has arisen and is exercisable shall be conclusive evidence of that fact in favour of a purchaser of all or any of the Charged Assets.
- 8.1.2 The receipt of a Receiver shall be an absolute discharge to a purchaser from, or other person dealing with, a Receiver and shall relieve that purchaser of any obligation to see to the application of any monies paid to or at the discretion of a Receiver and in making any sale or disposal a Receiver may do so for such consideration, in such manner and on such terms (including payment by instalments) as it thinks fit.

8.2 Protection of CBC and Receiver

Neither CBC nor any Receiver shall be liable to the Chargor in respect of any loss or damage which arises out of the exercise, the attempted exercise or the failure to exercise any of their respective powers or for any other loss of any nature whatsoever, except in the case of gross negligence or wilful default.

8.3 Delegation

8.3.1 CBC and any Receiver may from time to time delegate by power of attorney or otherwise to any person or corporation any of the powers and discretions of CBC or the Receiver under this Floating Charge whether arising by statute, the provisions hereof or otherwise upon such terms and for such periods of time as it may think fit and may determine any such delegation.

8.3.2 Neither CBC nor any Receiver will be liable to the Chargor for any loss or damage arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct of any such delegate, and references in this Floating Charge to CBC or to any Receiver will where the context so admits include references to any delegates so appointed.

9 Release of security

9.1 Release of security

Subject to the provisions of Clause 10 (*Avoidance of Payments*), at the request and cost of the Chargor, CBC shall execute such documents as may be required to release this Floating Charge and any other security created over the Charged Assets or any of them by this Floating Charge in accordance with clause 11 (*Security*) of the Loan Agreement.

9.2 Entitlement to retain security

If any payment or discharge of the Secured Obligations is, in the reasonable opinion of CBC, liable to be avoided or invalidated under any enactment relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, CBC may refuse to grant any release of the security created by this Floating Charge for such further period as the risk of such avoidance or invalidity continues.

10 Avoidance of payments

No assurance, security or payment which may be avoided or adjusted under the law, including under any statute relating to bankruptcy or insolvency and no release, settlement or discharge given or made by CBC on the faith of any such assurance, security or payment, shall prejudice or affect the right of CBC to recover the Secured Obligations from the Chargor (including any monies which CBC may be compelled to pay or refund under the provisions of the Insolvency Act and any costs payable by it pursuant to or otherwise incurred in connection therewith) or to appoint a Receiver and enforce the charges contained in this Floating Charge to the full extent of the Secured Obligations.

11 Cumulative remedies and waivers

The rights of CBC and the Receiver may be exercised as often as necessary, are cumulative and are in addition to its respective rights under general law and may be waived only in writing and specifically. Delay in the exercise or non-exercise of any right shall not be a waiver of that right.

12 Severability

If any of the provisions of this Floating Charge is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable that shall not affect the validity, legality and enforceability of any other provision in this Floating Charge.

13 Application of proceeds

13.1 Application of proceeds

Any moneys received by CBC or any Receiver after the security created by this Floating Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 6 (When security becomes enforceable) shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Intercreditor Deed.

13.2 Other claims

The provisions of Clause 13.1 (*Application of Proceeds*) are subject to the payment of any claims having priority over the security created by this Floating Charge. This Clause does not prejudice the right of CBC to recover any shortfall from the Chargor.

14 New Accounts

14.1 New Accounts

If CBC at any time becomes aware of any subsequent security or other like interest, matter, event or transaction affecting any Charged Asset (save for the Security Documents) CBC may open a new account or accounts for the Chargor in its books.

14.2 Ruling off

If CBC does not open any such new account then, unless it gives express written notice to the Chargor to the contrary, CBC will be treated as if it had in fact opened such account or accounts at the time when it became so aware and as from that time all payments by or on behalf of the Chargor to CBC will be credited or treated as having been credited to a new account of the Chargor and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Obligations then outstanding until such time as any relevant clawback period has expired.

15 Suspense Accounts

All monies received, recovered or realised by CBC under this Floating Charge (including the proceeds of any conversion of currency) may in the discretion of CBC be credited to any interest bearing suspense or impersonal account maintained with any bank, building society or financial institution as it considers appropriate and may be held in such account during any relevant clawback period pending their application from time to time at the end of the relevant clawback period in or towards the discharge of any of the Secured Obligations and save as provided herein no party will be entitled to withdraw any amount at any time standing to the credit of any suspense or impersonal account referred to above.

16 Power of Attorney

16.1 Appointment and powers

Subject to the satisfaction of the HCCI Security Documents, the Chargor irrevocably appoints CBC and every Receiver to be its attorney on its behalf or in its name or otherwise to execute and do all such assurances, acts and things which the Chargor is required to do under this Floating Charge but has failed to do and generally in its name and on its behalf to exercise all or any of the powers, conferred by or pursuant to this Floating Charge or by statute on CBC or any Receiver and to sign, execute, seal and deliver and otherwise perfect any deed, assurance, agreement, instrument or act which it or he may reasonably deem proper in or for the purpose of exercising any such powers, authorities and discretions. Provided that CBC shall not be entitled to exercise its powers under this Clause 16.1 prior to the date on which the security created by this Floating Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 6 (When security becomes enforceable).

16.2 Ratification

The Chargor ratifies and confirms whatever any such attorney mentioned in Clause 16.1 (Appointment and powers) shall do in the exercise of all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions referred to in such Clause.

17 Transfers

- 17.1 The Chargor may not assign or transfer its rights and/or obligations under this Floating Charge.
- 17.2 CBC may assign or transfer its rights and/or obligations under this Floating Charge in accordance with the terms of clause 16.2 (Assignation and Further Assurance) of the Loan Agreement.

18 Notices

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Floating Charge shall be made in accordance with clause 20 (*Notices*) of the Intercreditor Deed.

19 Financial Collateral

19.1 Right to appropriate

To the extent that the Charged Assets constitute "financial collateral" and this Floating Charge and the obligations of the Chargor constitute a "security financial collateral arrangement" (in each case for the purpose of and as defined in the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (SI 2003 No. 3226) (the "Regulations")) CBC shall have the right after the security created by this Floating Charge has become enforceable to appropriate all or any part of that financial collateral in or towards the satisfaction of the Secured Obligations.

19.2 Value of financial collateral

For the purpose of Clause 19.1 (Right to appropriate), the value of the financial collateral appropriated shall be such amount as CBC reasonably determines having taken into account advice obtained by it from an independent investment or accountancy firm of national standing selected by it. In each case, the parties agree that the method of valuation provided for in this Floating Charge shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuation for the purposes of the Regulations.

20 Registration

The Chargor consents to the registration of this Floating Charge for preservation.

21 Counterparts, Delivery, Etc

- 21.1 This Floating Charge may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Floating Charge.
- 21.2 Where this Floating Charge is executed in counterparts:
 - 21.2.1 it shall not take effect until all counterparts have been delivered;
 - 21.2.2 all counterparts shall be held as undelivered for the purposes of The Legal Writings (Counterparts and Delivery) (Scotland) Act 2015 until the parties agree the date on which they are to be treated as delivered; and
 - 21.2.3 such date of delivery shall be inserted in the blank provided for that purpose on page 1 of this Floating Charge.

22 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

22.1 Governing law

This Floating Charge and any non-contractual obligations arising out of it or in connection with it shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of Scotland.

22.2 Jurisdiction

- 22.2.1 The courts of Scotland have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Floating Charge (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Floating Charge) (a "Dispute").
- 22.2.2 The parties agree that the courts of Scotland are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party will argue to the contrary.

22.2.3 This Clause 22.2 (*Jurisdiction*) is for the benefit of CBC only. As a result, CBC shall not be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, CBC may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: these presents consisting of this and the preceding 15 pages are executed as follows and are delivered for the purposes of the Legal Writings (Counterparts and Delivery) (Scotland) Act 2015 on the date specified on page 1 of this Floating Charge:-

SUBSCRIBED for and on behalf of the said
FERGUSON MARINE ENGINEERING (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

| on 1 February 2019 | |
|---------------------------------|--------------|
| by | GERRY MUZEHA |
| Director / Authorised Signatory | Print name |
| in the presence of: | |
| Full Name: RETER BRANKS | |
| Address: | |
| | |

For CLYDE BLOWERS CAPITAL FUND III LP, acting by its general partner CLYDE BLOWERS CAPITAL GP III LP, acting by its general partner CLYDE BLOWERS CAPITAL GP III LIMITED

| or man passing by no gonoral parallel out of the | |
|--|----------------------------|
| signature of Witness | signature of Director |
| PETER BRADING | SITHING POWELL |
| full name of above (print) | full name of above (print) |
| | date of signing |
| address of witness | place of signing |